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7 ‘DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Alaska Native Brotherhood/Sisterhood Hall of Local Camp
No. 1, Sitka, sits between Katlean Street and the waters of
Sitka harbor. The building is in the area to which the Sitka
Tlingits returned some twenty years after being defeated by
the Russians at the 1804 battle of Indian River. The area
has been occupied by them since that time.

Approximately 40 x 60 feet, this structure is of wood frame
construction. It is rectangular is shape, consisting, from
external appearance, of two stories and an attic. The front
end is on solid ground, facing out upon a street. Most of
the length of the building, all the way to its back end,
projects out over water, supported upon six rows of vertical
wood piles. The interior is organized as an auditorium, two
stories in height, with partitioned spaces at front and rear
ends of the building.

The rear of the auditorium is toward the front wall, while

the stage is at the back end of the building, over the

water. There appears to be a lobby-type partition separating
the entrance doors from the main auditorium on the first

floor, and an office space on the second floor front,

separated from the main two-story high auditorium. The
backstage area has four windows, two at first-floor and two

at second floor level, and is partitioned off from the main
auditorium by the proscenium arch and wall. Within the
auditorium a narrow gallery is hung at second story level
along the rear and two side walls, with access to the

gallery apparently by a stairway at the rear of the auditorium.
A door from the left front of the auditorium opens out digectly
upon a boardwalk pier along the left side of the building
which extends further out over the water than this building.

The exterior of the building appears to be covered by wood
siding and shingles applied at several different periods of
time. The contrasts in weathering of the siding and the
roof indicate that the building has been subject to at least
two modifications and enlargements. It appears as if the
original section of the building consisted of the rear three
quarters of the first floor and the same segment of the
attic. It appears that the front quarter of the first floor
and the front quarter of the attic were added at a later
date, and that the roof was raised and the four walls
elevated, to create the second floor level at a later date
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Significance

Alaska Native Brotherhood, Sitka Camp No. 1, is the original
local chapter of this pan-Alaska native organization that,
for most of the first half of the twentieth century, was the
only such group representing Alaska's natives. Built in
1914, the Sitka ANB Hall is the headquarters of this camp
and its counterpart in the Alaska Native Sisterhood.

Founded in 1912, apparently an outgrowth of efforts by
Tlingits to fight discrimination by resturants and movie
houses, the Brotherhood is a federation of local camps.
Although there are now scores of these, the Sitka group is
distinguished by its role as the first local camp and by the
fact that Sitka's large native population for a long time
made it one of the parent organization's most powerful
elements.

During its lifetime, the Alaska Native Brotherhood/Sisterhood

has been instrumental in gaining full citizenship for Alaska's
natives (by supporting such legislation as extension of the

Indian Reorganization Act to Alaska) and in curbing discrimination.
More recently, the group has been an important force in

preserving native heritage'through support of projects such

as "Alaska Totems; a heritage in peril", restoration of

Chief Shakes Community House, and passage of the Alaska

Historic Preservation Act.

Today, the hall at Sitka continues to serve the native
community, as camp headquarters, in which many social events
and ceremonies such as funerals are held, and as offices for
administrators of the Indian Education Act and Alaska Legal
Services. Owned by Camp No. 1, the building is open to
visitors when these offices are open, as well as during the
many cultural activities occuring there.

Historical Babkground

When Europeans fifst "discovered”" Alaska in 1743, they did
not come to an emply land. Significant populations of
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still. Below the first floor level, a skirt or siding
shields the tops of the pilings, and probably provides
additional protection to the underside of the structure.

The front of the building, at the first floor level, has a
pair of double leaf, single panel entrance doors, set in a
centered recession, framed by a plain wood surround. Centered
in each of the left and right panels at the first floor

level are pairs of twin wood framed double hung sliding
windows. Three pairs of similar windows are set at the
center and quarter marks along the front of the building at
the second floor level. The right hand side of the building
has no access openings or fenestration. The left hand side
has one door, from the auditorium to the wooden pier which
runs along that side of the building. At the water end of
the building there are four windows, backstage of the
auditorium. At the second floor level are two double-light
hinged frame windows. At the first floor level is one similar
window and one window of the same size containing six small
lights.

The tin covered medium gable roof overhangs all four surfaces.

It is trimmed at the front and back ends by plain boxed- bo gl d,
cornices, each with seven unadorned corbel-like supports in wacbts
the form of triangular struts. The botton edges of the long

sides are unadorned.
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Aleuts, Eskimo, and Indians occupied much of the area that
came to be called Russian America.

Relations between promyshlennlkl, Russian or Siberia hunters
who came to exploit Alaska's fur resources, and the natives
were often stormy; although as early as March of 1766,
Empress Catherine enjoined her subjects to "be good to their
new fellows, the inhabitants of the islands [the Aleutians],
refraining from the slightest oppression or deceit.”

This injunction, which came at the end of an Imperial Decree
addressed to Chicherin, the Governor of Siberia, and dated
March 2, 1766, was followed by a series of instructions that
were issued throughout Russian administration of Alaska
relative to the native populations, their status, duties,
and treatment.

The natives' status evolved as Russian America:. passed

through a period of free competition in the fur trade (1743-
1798); a period of monopoly by the Russian American Company
when its activity in Alaska was overseen by Alexander

Baranov, a Siberian merchant (1799-1817); and a period when
Russian naval officers served as chief executives of the
territory (1818-1867). The Russian American Company's
responsibilities for the natives, and the Imperlal Government's
attitude towards them changed with successive charters for

the Company.

The second and third charters, those of 1821 and 1844,
declared that all Russians, creoles (part native, part
Russian), and dependent tribes (those over whom the Russians
were able to assert control), were Russian subjects.

When Russia sold Alaska to the United States, Article 3 of
the Treaty of Cession of March 30, 1867 (15 Stat. 542)
promlsed "all the rights, adventages and immunities of
citizens of the United States" to those in Alaska, excepting
"uncivilized tribes” Thus, those natives who were members
of settled tribes and creoles could clalm the right of )
American citizenship.
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This was of limited benefit, for while the Russians, accustomed
to mingling with the native tribes of Siberia, had not
demonstrated great prejudice against the natives (they had
treated them harshly and demanded much, but not primarily on

a racial basis); citizens of the United States who came to
Alaska brought with them the background of the western
frontier.

~ Prejudices springing from this background were particularly
apparent in southeastern Alaska where natives and whites
were in closer continued contact than in other parts of the
state.

Perhaps as a result of this closer association, although
there was certainly prejudice manifested in other areas of
Alaska, it was in Juneau in 1912 that twelve southeast
Alaska native men and one woman met at the offices of W. G.
Beatty, Superintendent of the Bureau of Indian Affairs in
Alaska. The meeting initiated the Alaska Native Brotherhood/
Sisterhood, an organization whose purpose is expressed in

its constitution as "to oppose, discourage, and overcome the
narrow injustice of race prejudice, and to aid in the )
development of the Territory of Alaska, in making it worthy
of a place among the States of North America."

Initially the group had local camps in Sitka, Juneau, and
Douglas. These were joined by chapters in nearly every
village in southeast Alaska.

During its first years, the ANB/S achieved many victories in
extension of rights to Alaska's natives that should have

been common to all citizens of the United States. This
included the right to Workmen's €ompensation and the’

right of native children to attend public school. In 1929,
ANB/S initiated the first native claims court suit, seed of the
Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of 1971 which awarded
nearly a billion dollars and 40 million acres of public land

to Alaska's natives.
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The historical importance of the ANB Hall at Sitka, as
representative of this organization and its achievements,’
was recognized with its entry in the National Register of
Historic Places on February 23, 1972.
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